

Filing by ICE Clear Credit LLC.

Pursuant to Rule 19b-4 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Initial *	Amendment *	Withdrawal	Section 19(b)(2) *	Section 19(b)(3)(A) *	Section 19(b)(3)(B) *
<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Pilot	Extension of Time Period for Commission Action *	Date Expires *	Rule		
<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="text"/>	<input type="checkbox"/> 19b-4(f)(1)	<input type="checkbox"/> 19b-4(f)(4)	<input type="checkbox"/> 19b-4(f)(5)
			<input type="checkbox"/> 19b-4(f)(2)	<input type="checkbox"/> 19b-4(f)(6)	
			<input type="checkbox"/> 19b-4(f)(3)		

Notice of proposed change pursuant to the Payment, Clearing, and Settlement Act of 2010

Section 806(e)(1) *

Section 806(e)(2) *

Security-Based Swap Submission pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Section 3C(b)(2) *

Exhibit 2 Sent As Paper Document

Exhibit 3 Sent As Paper Document

Description

Provide a brief description of the action (limit 250 characters, required when Initial is checked *).

ICE Clear Credit LLC proposes changes to its governance procedures.

Contact Information

Provide the name, telephone number, and e-mail address of the person on the staff of the self-regulatory organization prepared to respond to questions and comments on the action.

First Name *	Olivia	Last Name *	Bazor
Title *	Staff Attorney		
E-mail *	olivia.bazor@ice.com		
Telephone *	(904) 855-5580	Fax	

Signature

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange of 1934, ICE Clear Credit LLC. has duly caused this filing to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date	08/27/2024	(Title *)
By	Olivia Bazor (Name *)	Staff Attorney

NOTE: Clicking the signature block at right will initiate digitally signing the form. A digital signature is as legally binding as a physical signature, and once signed, this form cannot be changed.

Olivia Bazor
Digitally signed by Olivia Bazor
Date: 2024.08.27 15:04:13 -04'00'

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

For complete Form 19b-4 instructions please refer to the EFFF website.

Form 19b-4 Information *

Add Remove View

The self-regulatory organization must provide all required information, presented in a clear and comprehensible manner, to enable the public to provide meaningful comment on the proposal and for the Commission to determine whether the proposal is consistent with the Act and applicable rules and regulations under the Act.

Exhibit 1 - Notice of Proposed Rule Change *

Add Remove View

The Notice section of this Form 19b-4 must comply with the guidelines for publication in the Federal Register as well as any requirements for electronic filing as published by the Commission (if applicable). The Office of the Federal Register (OFR) offers guidance on Federal Register publication requirements in the Federal Register Document Drafting Handbook, October 1998 Revision. For example, all references to the federal securities laws must include the corresponding cite to the United States Code in a footnote. All references to SEC rules must include the corresponding cite to the Code of Federal Regulations in a footnote. All references to Securities Exchange Act Releases must include the release number, release date, Federal Register cite, Federal Register date, and corresponding file number (e.g., SR-[SRO]-xx-xx). A material failure to comply with these guidelines will result in the proposed rule change being deemed not properly filed. See also Rule 0-3 under the Act (17 CFR 240.0-3)

Exhibit 1A - Notice of Proposed Rule Change, Security-Based Swap Submission, or Advanced Notice by Clearing Agencies *

Add Remove View

The Notice section of this Form 19b-4 must comply with the guidelines for publication in the Federal Register as well as any requirements for electronic filing as published by the Commission (if applicable). The Office of the Federal Register (OFR) offers guidance on Federal Register publication requirements in the Federal Register Document Drafting Handbook, October 1998 Revision. For example, all references to the federal securities laws must include the corresponding cite to the United States Code in a footnote. All references to SEC rules must include the corresponding cite to the Code of Federal Regulations in a footnote. All references to Securities Exchange Act Releases must include the release number, release date, Federal Register cite, Federal Register date, and corresponding file number (e.g., SR-[SRO]-xx-xx). A material failure to comply with these guidelines will result in the proposed rule change being deemed not properly filed. See also Rule 0-3 under the Act (17 CFR 240.0-3)

Exhibit 2- Notices, Written Comments, Transcripts, Other Communications

Add Remove View

Copies of notices, written comments, transcripts, other communications. If such documents cannot be filed electronically in accordance with Instruction F, they shall be filed in accordance with Instruction G.

Exhibit Sent As Paper Document

Exhibit 3 - Form, Report, or Questionnaire

Add Remove View

Copies of any form, report, or questionnaire that the self-regulatory organization proposes to use to help implement or operate the proposed rule change, or that is referred to by the proposed rule change.

Exhibit Sent As Paper Document

Exhibit 4 - Marked Copies

Add Remove View

The full text shall be marked, in any convenient manner, to indicate additions to and deletions from the immediately preceding filing. The purpose of Exhibit 4 is to permit the staff to identify immediately the changes made from the text of the rule with which it has been working.

Exhibit 4 ICC Clearing Rules.docx

Exhibit 5 - Proposed Rule Text

Add Remove View

The self-regulatory organization may choose to attach as Exhibit 5 proposed changes to rule text in place of providing it in Item I and which may otherwise be more easily readable if provided separately from Form 19b-4. Exhibit 5 shall be considered part of the proposed rule change

EXHIBIT 5A - ICC Clearing Rules.docx

Partial Amendment

Add Remove View

If the self-regulatory organization is amending only part of the text of a lengthy proposed rule change, it may, with the Commission's permission, file only those portions of the text of the proposed rule change in which changes are being made if the filing (i.e. partial amendment) is clearly understandable on its face. Such partial amendment shall be clearly identified and marked to show deletions and additions.

19b-4 Partial Amendment No 1 Govern

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 19b-4

Proposed Rule Change

By

ICE CLEAR CREDIT LLC

Pursuant to Rule 19b-4 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934

ICE Clear Credit LLC (“ICC”) hereby submits this partial amendment, constituting Partial Amendment No. 1, to its proposed rule change SR-ICC-2024-009 (the “Initial Filing”), in which ICC proposes updates to its ICC Clearing Rules.

This partial amendment would amend the Initial Filing by adding a proposed change made to the ICC Clearing Rules. ICC proposes to make such changes effective following Commission approval of the proposed rule change.

Accordingly, ICC proposes to amend the Initial Filing by inserting the following space in-between “Risk” and “Committee” to the “ICC Clearing Rules” paragraph on page 11 of Exhibit 5A, “Qualifications of Participants” Rule 201.(a).

ICC submits this partial amendment to correct the description of the proposed changes. The partial amendment would not otherwise change the purpose of, or statutory basis for, the proposed rule change. All other representations in the Initial Filing remain as stated therein and no other changes are being made.

EXHIBIT 4**201. Qualifications of Participants.**

- (a) ICE Clear Credit shall determine whether any applicant for status as a Participant, or any existing Participant, satisfies the qualifications established by ICE Clear Credit. Only Persons found by ICE Clear Credit to be so qualified shall be permitted to become or remain, as applicable, Participants. For the purpose of determining whether any applicant or Participant is thus qualified, ICE Clear Credit may establish minimum capital and other financial requirements for Participants, examine the books and records of any applicant or Participant (on the site of such applicant or Participant, during normal business hours, with reasonable advance notice, and, in the case of a Participant, not more frequently than annually unless ICE Clear Credit determines that a more frequent examination of the Participant is appropriate for the protection of the clearing system operated by ICE Clear Credit pursuant to these Rules), and take such other steps as it may deem necessary to ascertain the facts bearing upon the question of qualification. The Risk Committee will have certain consultation rights over any Modification (as defined in Rule 502) to the qualifications for Participants contemplated by this Rule 201.

EXHIBIT 5A



Clearing Rules

Table of Contents

1.	INTERPRETATION.....	3
2.	MEMBERSHIP	28
3.	CLEARING OF CONTRACTS	41
4.	MARGIN.....	51
5.	RISK COMMITTEE	69
6.	MISCELLANEOUS	81
7.	DISCIPLINARY RULES	95
8.	GENERAL GUARANTY FUND	107
9.	ARBITRATION RULES	143
10.	SETTLEMENT FINALITY LAWS	153
11-19.	[RESERVED]	166
20.	CREDIT DEFAULT SWAPS	167
20A.	CDS PORTABILITY RULES	186
21.	REGIONAL CDS COMMITTEES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES ..	190
22.	CDS PHYSICAL SETTLEMENT	211
23-25.	[RESERVED]	228
26.	CLEARED CDS PRODUCTS	229
	Schedule 401: Eligible Collateral & Thresholds.....	421
	Schedule 503: Form of Risk Committee Confidentiality Agreement.....	422
	Schedule 511: Form of Risk <u>Advisory Working Group Management Subcommittee</u> Confidentiality Agreement.....	428
	Schedule 702: Schedule of Assessments for Missed Price Submissions	431

EXHIBIT 5A

Rules of ICE Clear Credit LLC

PREAMBLE

The Board shall have sole responsibility for the control and management of the operations of ICE Clear Credit, subject only to the prior consultation rights of the Risk Committee ~~and the Risk Management Subcommittee~~ as described in Chapter 5 of, and elsewhere in, these Rules.

Participants shall explicitly contract to be bound by these Rules, and ICE Clear Credit will retain the right to modify these Rules and the ICE Clear Credit Procedures (as defined herein) from time to time in its sole discretion, subject to the prior consultation with the Risk Committee ~~and the Risk Management Subcommittee~~ with respect to only those modifications for which such consultation is prescribed in Chapter 5 of, and elsewhere in, these Rules.

Prior to modifying these Rules or materially modifying the ICE Clear Credit Procedures with respect to matters for which prior consultation with the Risk Committee ~~or the Risk Management Subcommittee~~ is not required, ICE Clear Credit will inform and may consult with the Risk Committee ~~or the Risk Management Subcommittee~~ and, taking into account the legal requirements of the Participants, will use good faith efforts to ensure that such modifications would not result in any Participant failing to be in compliance with laws or regulations applicable to such Participant.

EXHIBIT 5A

...

102. Definitions.

...

~~Independent ICE Subcommittee Managers~~

~~The meaning specified in Rule 511(a)(iii).~~

Independent Risk Committee Appointees

The meaning specified in Rule 508(a).

...

Non-Participant Appointees

The meaning specified in Rule 503(a)(xiii).

...

Non-Participant Party

A Person that is not ICE Clear Credit, a Participant or an Affiliate of a Participant (provided that a Client-Carrying Broker (including a Client Carrying Broker that is an Affiliate of a Participant) acting in its capacity as such will be deemed a Non-Participant Party for purposes of the Rules). Non-Participant Parties include, without limitation, a “cleared swaps customer” as defined in CFTC Rule 22.1 (other than a holder of a cleared swaps proprietary account as defined in such rule).

...

Participant Appointees

The meaning specified in Rule 503(a)(iv).

...

Risk Advisory Working Group~~Management Subcommittee~~

The Risk Advisory Working Group~~Management Subcommittee~~ ~~of the Risk Committee~~ whose composition, rights and responsibilities are described in Chapter 5 of these Rules.

EXHIBIT 5A

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee of ICE Clear Credit whose composition, rights and responsibilities are described in Chapter 5 of these Rules.

. . .

Risk Committee Provisions

The meaning specified in Rule 504.

Risk Committee Reconstruction Date

The meaning specified in Rule 503(a)(vi).

. . .

Specified Actions

The meaning specified in Rule 502.

. . .

~~**Subcommittee Specified Action**~~

~~The meaning specified in Rule 510.~~

. . .

2. MEMBERSHIP

201. Qualifications of Participants.

- (a) ICE Clear Credit shall determine whether any applicant for status as a Participant, or any existing Participant, satisfies the qualifications established by ICE Clear Credit. Only Persons found by ICE Clear Credit to be so qualified shall be permitted to become or remain, as applicable, Participants. For the purpose of determining whether any applicant or Participant is thus qualified, ICE Clear Credit may establish minimum capital and other financial requirements for Participants, examine the books and records of any applicant or Participant (on the site of such applicant or Participant, during normal business hours, with reasonable advance notice, and, in the case of a Participant, not more frequently than annually unless ICE Clear Credit determines that a more frequent examination of the Participant is appropriate for the protection of the clearing system operated by ICE Clear Credit pursuant to these Rules), and take such other steps as it may deem necessary to

EXHIBIT 5A

ascertain the facts bearing upon the question of qualification. The Risk ~~Management-Sub C~~committee will have certain consultation rights over any Modification (as defined in Rule 502) to the qualifications for Participants contemplated by this Rule 201.

- (b) Participants must meet and maintain such standards of business integrity, financial capacity, creditworthiness, operational capability, experience and competence as may be established by ICE Clear Credit from time to time. Without limitation of the foregoing, no applicant shall be admitted or permitted to remain, as applicable, as a Participant unless, in ICE Clear Credit's sole determination:
- (i) It is regulated for capital adequacy (the "**Regulatory Requirement**") by a competent authority such as the CFTC, SEC, Federal Reserve Board, Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, European Securities and Markets Authority, U.K. Prudential Regulatory Authority or any other regulatory body ICE Clear Credit designates from time to time for this purpose, or it is an Affiliate of an entity that satisfies the Regulatory Requirement and is subject to consolidated holding company group supervision;
 - (ii) It has a minimum of \$50 million of Adjusted Net Capital (*provided* that this requirement may, at the discretion of ICE Clear Credit, be met by a Parent if such Parent provides a guarantee pursuant to Rule 205);

For purposes of this clause (ii):

"Adjusted Net Capital" (A) for a Participant that is an FCM, shall be as defined in CFTC Rule 1.17 and as reported on its Form 1-FR-FCM or FOCUS Report or as otherwise reported to the CFTC under CFTC Rule 1.12, (B) for a Participant that is not an FCM but is a Broker-Dealer, shall be its "net capital" as defined in SEC Rule 15c3-1 and as reported on its FOCUS Report, and (C) for a Participant that is neither an FCM nor a Broker-Dealer, shall be the amount of its net capital as determined pursuant to a similar risk adjusted capital calculation methodology acceptable to ICE Clear Credit;

- (iii) At the time of admission, it demonstrates to the Board, upon recommendation by ICE Clear Credit senior management after consultation with the Risk ~~Management-Sub C~~committee, that it (or, if a Parent has provided a guarantee of its obligations pursuant to Rule 205, its Parent) satisfies the internal stringent credit criteria established by the Board in its discretion, such satisfaction to be confirmed by an examination of its books and records;
- (iv) At no time after admission does it (or, if applicable, its Parent) cease to satisfy the internal credit criteria established by the Board under clause (iii) above, after consultation with the Risk ~~Management-Sub C~~committee, upon its admission;

EXHIBIT 5A

- (v) It demonstrates that it has sufficient financial ability to make its anticipated General Guaranty Fund contributions and provide Margin as required by these Rules, and it makes and maintains, so long as it is a Participant, a deposit or deposits of Collateral in the General Guaranty Fund as required by these Rules;
- (vi) It (on its own or through an arrangement acceptable to ICE Clear Credit) demonstrates operational capacity with respect to agreements (whether or not cleared) substantially similar (as determined by ICE Clear Credit) to Contracts, including (A) having the ability to process the expected volumes and values of Contracts within the required time frames (including at peak times and on peak days), (B) having the ability to submit required pricing data within the required time frames and (C) maintaining back-office facilities (or entering into a facilities management agreement in form and substance acceptable to ICE Clear Credit):
 - (1) remote from both the exchange floor and/or trading desks;
 - (2) with adequate systems (including but not limited to computer and communication systems) and records;
 - (3) with adequate number of competent personnel with sufficient operational background and experience with procedures for the management and clearance of business transacted in the Markets and Contracts in which the Participant will participate; and
 - (4) with such equipment (including computer software and hardware) as may be required by ICE Clear Credit.
- (vii) It (on its own or through an arrangement acceptable to ICE Clear Credit) demonstrates risk management competence in such agreements and Contracts;
- (viii) [Intentionally omitted.]
- (ix) It has established relationships with, and has designated to ICE Clear Credit, an approved settlement bank for confirmation and payment or delivery, as applicable, of all Margin and any other payments or deliveries required to be made by it to or from ICE Clear Credit, or has made alternate arrangements to facilitate such payments and deliveries in a timely manner and in accordance with these Rules and the ICE Clear Credit Procedures;
- (x) It has established relationships with one or more swap data repositories and/or security-based swap data repositories as necessary for reporting its cleared Contracts in accordance with applicable law;
- (xi) It provides in a timely manner all reports and information relating to the Participant, Persons controlling the Participant, and related or affiliated

EXHIBIT 5A

organizations as required by these Rules or otherwise required by ICE Clear Credit, and upon becoming aware that any such report or information was at the time provided false or misleading in any material respect, it promptly provides ICE Clear Credit a correcting amendment of or supplement to such report or information; and

- (xii) It is (and, if its Parent provides a guarantee pursuant to Rule 205, its Parent is) organized in a jurisdiction whose insolvency laws are acceptable to ICE Clear Credit.
- (xiii) It is not subject to statutory disqualification under Section 8a(2) of the CEA or Section 3(a)(39) of the Securities Exchange Act, or otherwise applicable CFTC or SEC regulations.
- (xiv) It participates in default management simulations, new technology testing and other exercises, as notified by ICE Clear Credit from time to time.

202. Application for Participant Status.

- (a) Persons desiring to clear Trades through ICE Clear Credit shall make application in such form as shall be prescribed by ICE Clear Credit. Each applicant must execute the Participant Agreement and agree to abide by the Rules and related interpretations and the ICE Clear Credit Procedures as in effect from time to time. Decisions with respect to an application to be a Participant shall be made by the Board on the advice of ICE Clear Credit management and the Risk ~~Management~~ SubCommittee. An applicant for Participant status shall be conclusively deemed to have agreed to have no recourse against ICE Clear Credit, the Board or any member of the Risk ~~Management~~ SubCommittee in the event that its application to become a Participant is rejected. In the event that an applicant for Participant status is denied participation in or is granted limited access to ICE Clear Credit, ICE Clear Credit shall provide to such applicant and to the CFTC and SEC a statement setting forth the specific grounds on which the applicant was denied or the Participant's access was limited.
- (b) Notwithstanding the termination of Participant status, a Person admitted as a Participant agrees to be responsible for any Violation (as defined in Rule 701) committed by such Person while a Participant and agrees to have any disputes that arise while a Participant and that relate to or arise out of any transaction with ICE Clear Credit or status of a Participant in ICE Clear Credit resolved in accordance with the Rules.

• • •

5. RISK COMMITTEE**501. The Risk Committee.**

EXHIBIT 5A

ICE Clear Credit shall establish a CDS risk committee (the “Risk Committee”) that includes representatives of Participants ~~(the “Risk Committee”)~~ and representatives of Non-Participant Parties, as provided in Rule 503. The Board will consult with the Risk Committee with respect to matters that could materially affect the risk profile of ICE Clear Credit. The Board shall consider and respond to proposals, recommendations and other input provided to the Board by the Risk Committee. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Rules, the Board shall not have any obligation to accept any proposal made by, or take any action proposed by, the Risk Committee, and any deliberation and/or decision by the Board with respect to any such proposal shall be made at the sole discretion of the Board, with no obligation whatsoever to the Risk Committee in respect of such deliberation or decision.

502. Specified Actions.

Without limiting the general provisions of Rule 501, ICE Clear Credit shall not take nor permit to be taken any of the following actions without prior consultation with the Risk Committee (“**Specified Actions**”):

- (a) accept for clearing any types of transactions other than the credit default swaps published by ICE Clear Credit on its website (“**Approved Products**”) and, with respect to new Contracts (including for Approved Products) or the then-existing Contracts, establish, impose, make any change or addition to or deletion from or otherwise modify, directly or indirectly, (collectively, “**Modify**” and any such action, a “**Modification**”) the Rules, or, to the extent directly and materially relating thereto, the ICE Clear Credit Procedures or any other governing provisions, (the Rules, such ICE Clear Credit Procedures and such other governing provisions, collectively, the “**ICE Provisions**”) relating to the specific characteristics of a Contract or make the determination that a proposed Modification to the ICE Provisions relating to the specific characteristics of a Contract is not a Contract Modification (as defined in Rule 616), it being understood that adding new series or versions of an index to an existing Contract or a new coupon or tenor for an existing Contract as contemplated by the Rules governing such Contract shall not be considered a Modification;
- (b) (i) Modify the ICE Provisions that relate to Margin, including, without limitation, (A) the methodology for calculating any Margin Requirement or the components thereof, (B) the types of currency or assets that qualify as Eligible Margin or the methodology and discounts for calculating the Value thereof, (C) the methodology for determining the interest rate charged or credited for cash Margin, (D) provisions relating to the application, or the use, rehypothecation or investment, of Margin and (E) provisions relating to Physical Settlement Margin or (ii) Modify the ICE Provisions to include material obligations relating to, or otherwise materially affecting, the manner in which Participants or their Affiliates interact with their customers and/or conduct their business outside of the Participant’s direct dealings with ICE Clear Credit, including, without limitation, with respect to margin, collateral or other credit support provided by customers;

EXHIBIT 5A

- (c) Modify the ICE Provisions that relate to (i) the structure, size or application of the General Guaranty Fund, (ii) the methodology for calculating a Participant's Required Contribution or the components thereof, (iii) the types of currency or assets eligible for, or valuation methodology or discounts applied to, a Participant's Guaranty Fund contribution, (iv) the limit on Assessment Contributions in Rules 803 and 806, (v) the time period for, or means by which, Collateral is returned to a Participant, (vi) the methodology for determining the interest rate credited for Collateral on deposit in the General Guaranty Fund, (vii) the methodology and procedures for applying amounts on deposit in General Guaranty Fund and recoveries related thereto, (viii) provisions relating to the use, rehypothecation or investment of Collateral on deposit in the General Guaranty Fund or (ix) the size, form, timing, investment guidelines, valuation or priority scheme with respect to the ICE Clear Credit Initial Contribution or the ICE Clear Credit Continuing Contribution;
- (d) Modify the ICE Provisions that relate to (i) the Closing-out Process, the CDS Default Committee or the other rights and obligations of ICE Clear Credit upon the Default of a Participant or the occurrence of an ICE Clear Credit Default, (ii) the definition of ICE Clear Credit Default or Default or the process required to determine that a Default has occurred, (iii) the definition of Termination Event, the process required to determine that a Termination Event has occurred, or the rights and obligations of ICE Clear Credit upon the occurrence of a Termination Event with respect to a Participant, (iv) the process for dispute resolution or (v) the process for effecting physical settlement of Contracts or the allocation methodology relating thereto;
- (e) Modify the ICE Provisions that relate to (i) ICE Clear Credit or any other Person seeking the consent of, or engaging in consultation with, the Risk Committee or any other specified body or other Person, (ii) the delegation of responsibility for an action or determination to a Person other than ICE Clear Credit, (iii) ICE Clear Credit or any other Person applying a particular standard for an action or determination, including, without limitation, Rule 615 (or any successor Rule thereto) or (iv) Chapter 7 of these Rules (or any successor Chapter thereto);
- (f) Modify the ICE Provisions that relate to open access to the clearing system operated by ICE Clear Credit in accordance with these Rules for all execution venues and all Trade processing platforms, as contemplated by Rule 314 (or any successor Rule thereto);
- (g) Modify this Chapter of the Rules or Modify any other Risk Committee Provisions (as defined in Rule 504); ~~and~~
- (h) Determine the standards and requirements for initial and continuing Participant eligibility~~Any action that must be submitted to the Risk Management Subcommittee under Rule 510; and-~~

EXHIBIT 5A

(i) Approve or deny (or review approvals or denials of) Participant applications described in Rule 202 (or any successor Rule thereto) or the other ICE Provisions.

503. Composition of the Risk Committee; Confidentiality.

- (a) The composition of the Risk Committee shall be as follows:
- (i) The Risk Committee shall consist of ~~fourteen~~**twelve** members.
 - (ii) Each member of the Risk Committee shall have risk management experience and expertise and shall be subject to the approval of the Board, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.
 - (iii) Three of the members of the Risk Committee shall be comprised of (A) a member of the Board who is independent in accordance with the requirements of each of the New York Stock Exchange listing standards, the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Intercontinental Exchange, Inc.'s Board of Director Governance Principles (such requirements, the "Independence Requirements" and such member, the "**Independent ICE Manager**") and (B) two officers of ICE Clear Credit from among the President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Risk Officer, each appointed by ICE US Holding Company L.P. (including any successor, the "**ICE Parent**"), a Delaware limited partnership, by written notice to the Board;
 - (iv) ~~NThe other~~ nine members of the Risk Committee will be appointed as specified below (the "**Participant Appointees**");
 - (v) "**Participant Group**" means a Participant and its Affiliates, if any, such that, if two or more Participants are Affiliates, collectively they shall constitute a Participant Group.
 - (vi) The composition of the Participant Appointees shall be reconstituted on March 14, 2012 and each one year anniversary thereafter (or if any such day is not an ICE Business Day, the next ICE Business Day) as follows (each such date, a "**Risk Committee Reconstitution Date**," and the twelve full consecutive calendar months (including March through February) ending at the calendar month-end prior to a Risk Committee Reconstitution Date, an "**Eligibility Determination Period**") (subject to paragraph (ii) above):
 - (A) among those Participant Groups that have an incumbent member on the Risk Committee, those Participant Groups that have the six highest Participant Activities for the immediately preceding Eligibility Determination Period (each, a "**Top Six Incumbent Participant Group**") shall have the right to retain such member on the Risk Committee until the next Risk Committee Reconstitution Date;

EXHIBIT 5A

- (B) among the Participant Groups that are not Top Six Incumbent Participant Groups, the Participant Groups that have the three highest Participant Activities for the immediately preceding Eligibility Determination Period (each, an “**Eligible Participant Group**”) shall have the right to appoint or retain, as applicable, a member on the Risk Committee until the next Risk Committee Reconstitution Date;
 - (C) each Participant Group that has an incumbent member on the Risk Committee but is not entitled to retain such member as provided above shall cause its Risk Committee member to resign or otherwise remove such member from the Risk Committee effective as of the applicable Risk Committee Reconstitution Date; and
 - (D) each Participant Group that has the right to appoint a member to the Risk Committee as provided above and that does not have an incumbent member on the Risk Committee shall notify the Board in writing on or prior to the applicable Risk Committee Reconstitution Date of the individual appointed by such Participant Group to the Risk Committee; provided, however, that the failure to provide such notice shall not result in the loss of the right of such Participant Group to appoint a member to the Risk Committee.
 - (E) “**Participant Activity**” means, for a specified Eligibility Determination Period and with respect to a particular Participant Group, the aggregate volume of Trades during such time submitted to, and accepted for clearing by, ICE Clear Credit by members of such Participant Group, which such volume shall be measured in terms of aggregate notional amount of Trades so submitted and accepted. In the event that a Combination of Participants occurs prior to the applicable Risk Committee Reconstitution Date, all Participant Activity of such Participants (and their Affiliates) shall be aggregated together for purposes of determining the Participant Activity of the resulting Participant Group for the corresponding Eligibility Determination Period.
 - (F) “**Combination**” means any event in which a Participant (or its Affiliate) obtains Control of another Participant that was previously not an Affiliate of such Participant (or any Person that Controls such other Participant) or a Participant (or any Person that Controls such Participant) is merged with another Participant that was previously not an Affiliate of such Participant (or any Person that Controls such other Participant).
- (vii) Intentionally omitted.
 - (viii) Intentionally omitted.

EXHIBIT 5A

- (ix) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if at any time on or after the first Risk Committee Reconstitution Date, there is a Combination involving Participants where more than one of the relevant Participant Groups had the right to appoint a member of the Risk Committee, then, as of the date of consummation of such Combination, (A) such Participant Groups shall, collectively, have the right to appoint only one member of the Risk Committee and the Participant Group resulting from such Combination shall take all actions necessary to remove all but one of their previously appointed members effective as of the date of consummation of the Combination and (B) the vacanc(ies) of the Risk Committee will be filled by Participant Group(s) that had the highest Participant Activit(ies) (over the immediately preceding Eligibility Determination Period) among those Participants that, as of the date of consummation of such Combination, did not have the right to appoint a member to the Risk Committee (in order of the level of such Participant Activity, from highest to lowest) effective as of the date of consummation of such Combination.
- (x) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if at any time all Participants in a Participant Group with the right to appoint a member of the Risk Committee are in Default or have had their status as Participant terminated as a result of being a Retiring Participant, (A) such Participant Group shall immediately lose the right to appoint a member to the Risk Committee and (B) at the date of such Default or termination, the Participant Group that had the highest Participant Activity (over the immediately preceding Eligibility Determination Period) among those Participants that, as of the date of such Default or termination, did not have the right to appoint a member to the Risk Committee, shall have the right to appoint a member to the Risk Committee effective as of the date of such Default or termination.
- (xi) A Participant Group may appoint an individual to be a member of the Risk Committee only if such individual is an employee of one of the Participants in such Participant Group or an Affiliate thereof. Any member of the Risk Committee may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by the Participant Group that appointed such member pursuant to this Rule 503. In the event a vacancy occurs on the Risk Committee as a result of the retirement, removal, resignation or death of a member thereof, such vacancy shall be filled by an individual designated by the relevant Participant Group.
- (xii) Within five ICE Business Days of the end of each Eligibility Determination Period, ICE Clear Credit shall, based on its books and records, deliver to each Participant Group a good faith determination of the identity of (A) the Top Six Incumbent Participant Groups and (B) the Eligible Participant Groups, and shall inform each of the Top Six Incumbent Participant Groups and the Eligible Participant Groups of its right to appoint a member to the Risk Committee as of the next Risk Committee Reconstitution Date

EXHIBIT 5A

pursuant to this Rule; provided, however, that ICE Clear Credit and its Affiliates, Board and officers shall have no liability with respect to the delivery of such good faith determination. For the sake of clarity, such good faith determination shall identify only the Participant Groups mentioned above, and shall not set forth the Participant Activity levels of such Participant Groups. In the event any Participant Group disputes in good faith ICE Clear Credit's good faith determination of the Top Six Incumbent Participant Groups or the Eligible Participant Groups, the disputing Participant Group and the Risk Committee shall submit such dispute for resolution to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (or, if such firm shall decline or is unable to act or is not, at the time of such submission, independent of ICE Clear Credit, the disputing Participant Group or any member of the Risk Committee, to another independent accounting firm of international reputation mutually acceptable to the disputing Participant Group and the Risk Committee) (such firm, the "Independent Accounting Firm"), which shall, within 30 ICE Business Days after such submission, determine and report to ICE Clear Credit, the disputing Participant Group and the Risk Committee, and such report shall be final, conclusive and binding on the disputing Participant Group, the Risk Committee and ICE Clear Credit. The disputing Participant Group shall be solely responsible for the fees and disbursements of the Independent Accounting Firm. ICE Clear Credit and its Affiliates, Board and officers shall have no liability in connection with the determination of the Independent Accounting Firm.

(xiii) Two members of the Risk Committee shall be representatives of Non-Participant Parties and will be appointed as specified below (the "Non-Participant Appointees").

(A) Each Non-Participant Party shall be selected by majority vote of collectively the: (a) Risk Committee members serving pursuant to Rule 503(a)(iii) and (b) the Participant Appointees, from a slate of Non-Participant Parties nominated by one or more Risk Committee members serving pursuant to Rule 503(a)(iii) or Participant Appointees. The Non-Participant Parties selected pursuant to this Rule 503(a)(xiii) shall be required to be active in clearing transactions at ICE Clear Credit.

(B) Each Non-Participant Party selected hereunder shall notify the Risk Committee of the individual appointed by such Non-Participant Party to serve as a Non-Participant Appointee on the Risk Committee. Each such appointed Non-Participant Appointee shall have risk management experience and expertise and shall be subject to the approval of the Risk Committee, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

EXHIBIT 5A

- (C) A Non-Participant Party may appoint an individual to be a Non-Participant Appointee of the Risk Committee only if such individual is an employee of the Non-Participant Party or an Affiliate thereof. Any Non-Participant Appointee may be removed at any time, with or without cause, by the Non-Participant Party that appointed such Non-Participant Appointee Risk Committee member pursuant to this Rule 503. In the event a vacancy occurs on the Risk Committee in a position held by a Non-Participant Appointee member as a result of the retirement, removal, cessation of employment, resignation or death of such member, such vacancy shall be filled by an individual designated by the relevant Non-Participant Party in accordance with this Rule 503.
- (xiii) If, by written agreement of the Risk Committee and the Board, ICE Clear Credit is determined to have established multiple risk pools (each, a “**Risk Pool**”), ICE Clear Credit will create a new and separate risk committee for each such Risk Pool. In such event, (A) each such new risk committee will have, with respect to its Risk Pool, the same rights, responsibilities and operational procedures as the Risk Committee has under this Chapter, and (B) to the extent practicable, the composition of such other risk committee will be determined on the same basis as the Risk Committee is determined hereunder (taking into account, instead, the applicable volume or usage metric with respect to such Risk Pool as determined by the Risk Committee), with the rules for such composition being determined by the Board, in consultation with the Risk Committee.
- (xiv) No member of the Risk Committee may be subject to statutory disqualification under CEA Section 8a(2) or Section 3(a)(39) of the Securities Exchange Act, or other applicable CFTC or SEC regulations.
- (b) Each Participant whose Participant Group appoints a member of the Risk Committee shall, prior to participation in the Risk Committee, execute a confidentiality agreement substantially in the form of the agreement attached as Schedule 503 to these Rules and cause its Risk Committee member to execute an acknowledgement of his or her confidentiality obligations in a form reasonably prescribed by ICE Clear Credit and each such Participant and Risk Committee member shall comply with the confidentiality obligations thereunder.
- (c) Each Non-Participant Party who appoints a Non-Participant Appointee to the Risk Committee shall, prior to participation in the Risk Committee, execute a confidentiality agreement substantially in the form of the agreement attached as Schedule 503 to these Rules and shall cause its Non-Participant Appointee to execute an acknowledgement of his or her confidentiality obligations in a form reasonably prescribed by ICE Clear Credit and each such Non-Participant Party

EXHIBIT 5A

and Non-Participant Appointee shall comply with the confidentiality obligations thereunder.

504. Change of Control of ICE Clear Credit.

No change of control or sale (whether by merger, consolidation, stock sale, membership interest sale or sale, license or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets or otherwise) of Intercontinental Exchange, Inc., a Delaware corporation, ICE Clear Credit or the ICE Parent, in each case either directly or indirectly, will affect or alter in any manner the responsibilities, rights or operations of the Risk Committee or the manner in which the Risk Committee is constituted as set forth in the Rules (the "Risk Committee Provisions"), and the Risk Committee Provisions shall survive any such change in control or sale. The foregoing shall apply, mutatis mutandis, to any subsequent change of control or sale of the acquiring or surviving Person resulting from any such previous change of control or sale.

505. Actions by the Risk Committee.

- (a) Except as provided in Rule 508, all decisions and recommendations made by the Risk Committee shall be made at a meeting by majority vote of members. When providing to ICE Clear Credit or the Board a decision or recommendation made by the Risk Committee, the Risk Committee shall identify each member that participated and how such member voted.
- (b) A majority of the Risk Committee, ~~which must include at least half of the Participant Appointees,~~ shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of the Risk Committee. In the event that a member of the Risk Committee is unable to attend or participate in any meeting of the Risk Committee, the Participant or Non-Participant Party that designated such member of the Risk Committee may appoint an alternate to attend such meetings and to participate in the deliberations of such meetings. Such alternate will be permitted to vote on behalf of the absent member of the Risk Committee and will be considered an attendee of any meetings for the purposes of constituting a quorum.
- (c) The Risk Committee will be chaired by the Independent ICE Manager.
- (d) Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Risk Committee, either at a meeting or otherwise, may be taken without a meeting if the members of the Risk Committee, by unanimous action, consent thereto in writing and the writing or writings are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Risk Committee. Written notice of the action to be taken by written consent shall be given by any member of the Risk Committee who joined in such consent (as determined by the members of the Risk Committee who joined in such consent) to all other members of the Risk Committee and the Board within five ICE Business Days following the taking of any such action.

506. Fiduciary Duties; Limitation of Liability of the Risk Committee.

Copyright © 2009-2024. ICE Clear Credit LLC.

All rights reserved.

Rev. MM01/DD19/2024

EXHIBIT 5A

No member of the Risk Committee and no member of either a Participant Group or a Non-Participant Party that appoints such a member to the Risk Committee (each, a “**Protected Person**”) shall, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, have any fiduciary duties otherwise existing at law or equity to ICE Clear Credit, the ICE Parent, any directors, managers or officers of either, the Participants or any other Person by reason of such service on the Risk Committee or the appointment of a member to the Risk Committee. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Rules, to the extent that, at law or in equity, a Protected Person has duties (including fiduciary duties) and liabilities relating thereto to ICE Clear Credit, the ICE Parent, any directors, managers or officers of either, the Participants or any other Person, such Protected Person acting under the Rules shall not be liable to ICE Clear Credit, the ICE Parent, any directors, managers or officers of either, the Participants or any other Person for breach of fiduciary duty for its good faith reliance on the provisions of the Rules. The Rules, to the extent that they restrict the duties (including fiduciary duties) and liability of a Protected Person otherwise existing at law or in equity, are agreed by ICE Clear Credit and the ICE Parent to replace such other duties and liabilities of such Protected Person.

507. Meetings of the Risk Committee.

- (a) The Board or any two members of the Risk Committee may call for a meeting of the Risk Committee. The Risk Committee shall meet no less frequently than quarterly. Meetings of the Risk Committee shall be at such place and time as shall be determined by the party or parties that called the meeting. Not fewer than five ICE Business Days before each such meeting, the party or parties that called the meeting shall provide to each member of the Risk Committee (i) notice of such meeting, (ii) an agenda specifying in reasonable detail the matters to be discussed at such meeting and (iii) proposals or other written materials providing background in reasonable detail regarding the agenda items. Any member of the Risk Committee that wishes to have any additional matter discussed at any such meeting shall give to the party or parties that called the meeting and each other member of the Risk Committee notice of, and reasonable detail regarding, each matter it so wishes to discuss not fewer than two ICE Business Days prior to any such meeting. Emergency meetings of the Risk Committee may be called by any one or more members of the Risk Committee upon not less than one ICE Business Day’s telephonic or electronic notice by such member(s) of the Risk Committee to all other members of the Risk Committee specifying in reasonable detail the nature of such emergency, the business to be transacted at such meeting and the location of such emergency meeting (in the case of telephonic notice, to be confirmed by written facsimile or email notice) by any member of the Risk Committee. Emergency meetings of the Risk Committee may be held at the offices of ICE Clear Credit or such other place as shall be determined by the Independent ICE Manager, as the chair. In the event a quorum of the Risk Committee (as provided in Rule 505) for any meeting other than an emergency meeting is not present, such meeting shall be adjourned and the party or parties that called the meeting shall provide no less than two ICE Business Days’ second telephonic or electronic notice to the members of the Risk Committee of the reconvening of such adjourned

EXHIBIT 5A

meeting (in the case of telephonic notice, to be confirmed by written facsimile or email notice). In the event a quorum of the Risk Committee (as provided in Rule 505) for an emergency meeting is not present, such meeting shall be adjourned and the party or parties that called the meeting shall provide no less than twelve hours' second telephonic or electronic notice to the members of the Risk Committee of the reconvening of such adjourned emergency meeting (to be confirmed by written facsimile or email notice). In the event a quorum was not present at the adjourned meeting and is not present for the reconvening of such adjourned meeting, and a particular member of the Risk Committee and/or its alternate was not present at the adjourned meeting and that particular member and/or its alternate is not present for the reconvening of such adjourned meeting, such reconvening of the adjourned meeting of the Risk Committee shall not require the presence of such absent member or its alternate for a quorum. For purposes of the required vote for any action at the reconvening of the adjourned meeting, the size of the Risk Committee shall be deemed to have been reduced by the number of such member(s) or alternate(s) of the Risk Committee who was/were not present for either the adjourned meeting or the reconvening of such adjourned meeting.

- (b) Members of the Risk Committee may participate in a meeting of the Risk Committee by means of an audio or video conference ~~telephone~~ or similar communications ~~facility~~~~equipment~~ through which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and such participation in a meeting shall constitute presence in person at such meeting, except where a member of the Risk Committee participates in the meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of such meeting, to any business on the ground that such meeting was called or convened in violation of these Rules or any applicable law. ICE Clear Credit shall make participation by means of an audio or video conference ~~telephone~~ or similar communications ~~facility~~~~equipment~~ available to all members of the Risk Committee at all meetings of the Risk Committee; provided that all meetings must be held in the United States.
- (c) Any member of the Risk Committee that is entitled to notice of a meeting of the Risk Committee may waive such notice in writing, whether before or after the time of such meeting. Attendance by a member of the Risk Committee at a meeting thereof shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting by such member, except when such member attends such meeting for the express purpose of objecting, at the beginning of such meeting, to the transaction of any business at such meeting because such meeting is called or convened in violation of the Rules or any applicable law.
- (d) The decisions, recommendations and resolutions of the Risk Committee shall be reported in minutes, which shall state the date, time and place of the meeting (or the date of the written consent in lieu of meeting), the members of the Risk Committee present at the meeting, the resolutions put to a vote (or the subject of a written consent) and the results of such voting (or written consent). The minutes

EXHIBIT 5A

shall be entered in a minute book kept at the principal office of ICE Clear Credit and a copy of the minutes shall be provided to each member of the Risk Committee and the Board.

508. Risk Committee Board Appointees.

- (a) The Risk Committee shall have the authority to designate to ICE Parent in writing four members for election to the Board (the “**Risk Committee Board Appointees**”), two of whom must satisfy the Independence Requirements (the “**Independent Risk Committee Appointees**”). The Risk Committee shall seek to ensure that the two Risk Committee Board Appointees that do not satisfy the Independence Requirements are senior executives, preferably employed by the ultimate Parent (as defined in Rule 201) of a Participant, that have broad experience in corporate governance, management oversight and financial markets (including with respect to matters other than credit derivatives).
- (b) The Risk Committee Board Appointees shall be selected by majority vote of the Participant Appointees from a slate of individuals nominated by one or more Participant Appointees. Risk Committee Board Appointees shall serve in such capacity for the same term as the other members of the Board. The Risk Committee may instruct ICE Parent in writing to remove a Risk Committee Board Appointee from the Board at any time and for any reason by a majority vote of the Participant Appointees. The Risk Committee shall instruct ICE Parent in writing to remove an Independent Risk Committee Appointee from the Board promptly following the date that the Risk Committee becomes aware that such appointee ceases to satisfy the Independence Requirements during the appointee’s membership on the Board. The Risk Committee shall instruct ICE Parent in writing to remove a Risk Committee Board Appointee who is an employee of a Participant or Affiliate of a Participant promptly following the date that the Risk Committee becomes aware that such Participant is in Default or becomes a Retiring Participant. Upon any vacancy in the Risk Committee Board Appointees due to removal pursuant to this subparagraph or the resignation, death or incapacity of a Risk Committee Board Appointee, the Risk Committee shall convene as soon as reasonably practicable to instruct ICE Parent in writing to fill such vacancy in accordance with this Rule.
- (c) The Risk Committee shall be entitled to consult with ICE Parent prior to ICE Parent appointing any member of the Board (other than a Risk Committee Board Appointee) who was not a member of the Board on the date on which ICE Clear Credit (or its predecessor) first accepted Contracts for clearing, with respect to the skills and experience of such proposed member.

509. The Risk Advisory Working Group~~Management Subcommittee~~.

ICE Clear Credit shall establish a Risk Advisory Working Group as a forum to seek risk-based input from a broad array of market participants regarding all matters that could materially affect the risk profile of ICE Clear Credit. The members of the Risk Advisory

EXHIBIT 5A

~~Working Group shall include representatives of Participants and Non-Participant Parties. subcommittee of the Risk Committee (the “Risk Management Subcommittee”) composed of members as provided in Rule 511. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Rules, neither the Board nor the Risk Committee Board shall not have any obligation to accept any proposal made by, or take any action proposed by, the Risk Advisory Working Group Management Subcommittee, and any deliberation and/or decision by the Board or the Risk Committee Board with respect to any such proposal shall be made at the sole discretion of the Board or Risk Committee Board, respectively, with no obligation whatsoever to the Risk Advisory Working Group Management Subcommittee in respect of such deliberation or decision, subject to any reporting requirements to the CFTC under applicable CFTC rules or to the SEC under applicable SEC rules.~~

510. ~~[intentionally omitted] Subcommittee Specified Actions.~~

~~ICE Clear Credit shall not take nor permit to be taken any of the following actions without prior consultation with the Risk Management Subcommittee (“Subcommittee Specified Actions”):~~

- ~~(a) — Determine products eligible for clearing;~~
- ~~(b) — Determine the standards and requirements for initial and continuing Participant eligibility;~~
- ~~(c) — Approve or deny (or review approvals or denials of) Participant applications described in Rule 202 (or any successor Rule thereto) or the other ICE Provisions;~~
- ~~(d) — Modify this Chapter of the Rules or Modify any of the responsibilities, rights or operations of the Risk Management Subcommittee or the manner in which the Risk Management Subcommittee is constituted as set forth in the Rules.~~

511. ~~[intentionally omitted] Composition of the Risk Management Subcommittee; Confidentiality.~~

- ~~(a) — The composition of the Risk Management Subcommittee shall be as follows:
 - ~~(i) — The Risk Management Subcommittee shall consist of **five members.**~~
 - ~~(ii) — Each member of the Risk Management Subcommittee shall have risk management experience and expertise and shall be subject to the approval of the Board, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.~~
 - ~~(iii) — **Two** of the members of the Risk Management Subcommittee shall be members of the Board that meet the Independence Requirements and shall be appointed by the Board (“Independent ICE Subcommittee Managers”). The Board must make such finding upon the appointment of the member and as often as necessary in light of all circumstances relevant to such member, but in no case less than annually.~~~~

EXHIBIT 5A

~~(iv) One member of the Risk Management Subcommittee shall be a Non-Participant Party. Such member will be nominated by the buy-side Advisory Committee of ICE Clear Credit.~~

~~(v) Two of the members of the Risk Management Subcommittee shall be composed of representatives of Participants who are members of the Risk Committee. Such members shall be nominated by the Risk Committee.~~

~~(vi) No member of the Risk Management Subcommittee may be subject to statutory disqualification under CEA Section 8a(2) or Section 3(a)(39) of the Securities Exchange Act, or other applicable CFTC or SEC regulations.~~

~~(b) Each member of the Risk Management Subcommittee shall, prior to participation in the Risk Management Subcommittee, execute a confidentiality agreement substantially in the form of the agreement attached as Schedule 511 to these Rules.~~

512. Risk Advisory Working Group Management Subcommittee Actions; Fiduciary Duties; Limitation of Liability; Meetings.

Rules ~~5064 through 507~~ hereof shall apply to the Risk Advisory Working Group Management Subcommittee as though references to the “Risk Committee” are references to the “Risk Advisory Working Group Management Subcommittee” and references to the “Independent ICE Manager” are references to “Independent ICE Subcommittee Managers”, with the following limited exceptions: that for purposes of Rule 505(b), a majority of the Risk Management Subcommittee will be a quorum and that for purposes of Rule 507(a), the Risk Advisory Working Group Management Subcommittee shall meet when deemed necessary or desirable, but in no event shall the Risk Advisory Working Group meet less than two times per year by the Risk Management Subcommittee or its chairperson. Following each meeting, the Risk Advisory Working Group will provide the Risk Committee with a summary of the topics discussed and main points raised at the meeting.

6. MISCELLANEOUS

601. Emergencies.

(a) The Board, upon the affirmative vote of the Managers voting at a meeting where a quorum is present, may adopt a resolution in response to an Emergency (as “**Emergency Resolution**”) which shall supersede and supplant all contrary or inconsistent resolutions or Rules, except for this Rule and the provisions of Chapter 5; provided that no Emergency Resolution shall alter the maximum liability of Participants with respect to General Guaranty Fund contributions, Replenishment Contributions or Assessment Contributions under Rules 801, 803, 806 or 807 or (except in circumstances in which Rule 809 otherwise applies) give rise to Partial Tear-Up. Unless multiple conflicts of interest would make it impracticable to assemble a quorum promptly, a Manager who has a conflict of interest with respect to the outcome of such a vote (as determined by ICE Clear

EXHIBIT 5A

Credit) shall abstain from deliberating and voting on the matter in question. In the event that ICE Clear Credit is unable to convene a meeting of the Board reasonably promptly, an Eligible Officer may take action pursuant to this Rule (an “**Officer Emergency Action**”), *provided* that ICE Clear Credit shall convene a meeting of the Board as soon as practicable thereafter to ratify or rescind such Officer Emergency Action. ICE Clear Credit shall notify the CFTC and SEC of any action taken by Emergency Resolution or Officer Emergency Action.

- (b) Notwithstanding paragraph (a) of this Rule, in the event an Emergency Resolution or an Officer Emergency Action constitutes a Specified Action (as defined in Rule 502) ~~or would otherwise be subject to consultation with the Risk Committee or Subcommittee Specified Action (as defined in Rule 510)~~, there shall be no obligation to consult with the Risk Committee ~~or the Risk Management Subcommittee~~ to the extent that the Board or the Eligible Officer, as applicable, determines in good faith that the delay caused by consulting with the Risk Committee ~~or the Risk Management Subcommittee~~ would create significant risks to the clearing system operated by ICE Clear Credit pursuant to these Rules and the Participants generally; *provided, however*, that ICE Clear Credit shall notify the Risk Committee ~~or the Risk Management Subcommittee~~, as applicable, of such action and the Board shall consult with the Risk Committee ~~or the Risk Management Subcommittee~~, as applicable, as promptly as practicable, and in any event within three ICE Business Days, after taking such Specified Action or other action to discuss the Specified Action (or other action) taken and the Board shall take into account such consultation in determining whether to modify or rescind such Specified Action (or other action).

...

703. The Business Conduct Committee.

- (a) The Business Conduct Committee shall have the power to direct that an investigation of any suspected Violation be conducted by ICE Clear Credit, and shall hear any matter referred to it by ICE Clear Credit or the ~~Review~~**isk Management Subcommittee** (as defined below) regarding a suspected Violation.

...

EXHIBIT 5A

Schedule 503: Form of Risk Committee Confidentiality Agreement

EXHIBIT 5A

Confidentiality Agreement

THIS CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made as of this [] day of [], 20[], by and between ICE Clear Credit LLC (the “Company”) and [CLEARINGHOUSE MEMBER or CUSTOMER OF A CLEARINGHOUSE MEMBER] (the “MarketClearinghouse ParticipantMember”).

WHEREAS, the Company and the Market ParticipantClearinghouse Member wish to enter into this Agreement in connection with the Market ParticipantClearinghouse Member’s appointment of a member (the “Committee Member”) of the Risk Committee (as defined in the Rules of ICE Clear Credit LLC (the “Rules”); capitalized terms used but not defined in this Agreement shall have the meanings given to them in the Rules); and

WHEREAS, in connection with the Committee Member’s appointment to the Risk Committee, the Company may furnish, or cause to be furnished, Confidential Information (defined below) to the Market ParticipantClearinghouse Member or the Committee Member;

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. The term “Confidential Information” means all confidential information relating to (a) the Company or (b) other Market ParticipantsClearinghouse Members made available in connection with (i) such other Market ParticipantClearinghouse Members’ equity interest in the Company or its Affiliates or (ii) such other Market ParticipantClearinghouse Members’ status as a Participant or Non-Participant Party (each as defined in the Rules) that is proprietary to the Company or other Market ParticipantsClearinghouse Members, as applicable.

2. The term “Representatives” means the Committee Member, the Market ParticipantClearinghouse Member’s Affiliates and the respective officers, directors, employees, attorneys, accountants, and auditors of the Market ParticipantClearinghouse Member and its Affiliates, to the extent such Persons have received any Confidential Information.

3. In addition to any other confidentiality obligation to the Company, the Market ParticipantClearinghouse Member, (a) shall, and shall direct its Representatives to, maintain in confidence any and all Confidential Information, except as otherwise permitted in this Agreement, (b) shall not disclose, and shall direct its Representatives not to disclose, Confidential Information to any Person, except as otherwise permitted in this Agreement and (c) shall use the same degree of care in protecting the confidentiality of the Confidential Information as it uses in protecting its own information of a similar type.

4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Market ParticipantClearinghouse Member and its Representatives may disclose Confidential Information or portions thereof (i) if, in the case of Confidential Information relating to the Company, the Company gives its prior written consent thereto and if, in the case of Confidential Information relating to another Market ParticipantClearinghouse Member, such other Market ParticipantClearinghouse Member gives its prior written consent thereto, (ii) in the event that the Market ParticipantClearinghouse Member or any of its Representatives becomes legally compelled (by oral questions, interrogatories, requests for information or documents, subpoena, civil investigative demand or similar process, including by any regulator with oversight responsibility for the Clearinghouse or the Market

EXHIBIT 5A

~~Participant Clearinghouse Member~~ or its Affiliates) to disclose, or is advised by legal counsel that it is required by applicable law to disclose, any of the Confidential Information, or (iii) if disclosure of such Confidential Information is requested or required by any governmental authority or self-regulatory agency or organization or by any rule or regulation applicable to the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member. To the extent reasonably practicable and/or permitted under applicable law, prior to any such disclosure under clause (ii) of this paragraph, the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member or its Representatives, as applicable, will use commercially reasonable efforts to provide the Company or the applicable other Market Participant Clearinghouse Member with prompt notice of such requirement so that the Company or the applicable other Market Participant Clearinghouse Member may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy and/or waive compliance with the provisions of this paragraph, and, if, in the absence of a protective order or other remedy or the receipt of a waiver by the Company or the applicable Market Participant Clearinghouse Member, the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member or its Representatives is or are nonetheless legally compelled to disclose Confidential Information, the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member or its Representatives may, without liability hereunder, disclose such Confidential Information.

5. At such time as the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member ceases to be a member of the Clearinghouse or no longer has a right to appoint a member to the Risk Committee, the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member, at its option, shall return or destroy all Confidential Information in its or its Representatives' possession. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member and its Representatives may retain (i) Confidential Information such Person is required to retain to comply with applicable law, (ii) any Confidential Information that is contained in an archived computer system back up in accordance with the security and/or disaster recovery procedures of such Person, and (iii) one copy of Confidential Information for use solely in connection with any litigation, arbitration or like action with respect to any disputes arising out of this Agreement; provided, however, that any such retained Confidential Information shall remain subject to the ongoing obligations to treat and hold the same as confidential in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. In the event that the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member shall provide Confidential Information to any Person in violation of this Agreement, the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member shall be responsible for the breach of this Agreement by such other Person.

7. Notwithstanding Section 3 of this Agreement:

a. The Market Participant Clearinghouse Member and its Representatives may disclose any Confidential Information for bona fide business purposes on a strict "need to know" basis to the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member and its Representatives, including the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member's board of directors (or equivalent governing body); and

b. The provisions of Section 3 of this Agreement shall not apply to, and Confidential Information shall not include:

i. any information that is or has become generally available to the public other than as a result of a disclosure by the Market Participant Clearinghouse Member or its Representatives in

EXHIBIT 5A

breach of any of the provisions of this Agreement, provided, that information disclosed by a Person to a governmental authority or self-regulatory agency or organization in connection with the formation, ownership and operation of the Clearinghouse shall not be deemed “generally available to the public” as a result of such disclosure;

ii. any information that has been independently developed by the ~~Market Participant Clearinghouse Member~~ or its Representatives without violating any of the provisions of this Agreement or any other similar contract to which the ~~Market Participant Clearinghouse Member~~ or its Representatives is or are bound;

iii. any information that was available to the ~~Market Participant Clearinghouse Member~~ or its Representatives on a non-confidential basis prior to disclosure; or

iv. any information made available to the ~~Market Participant Clearinghouse Member~~ or its Representatives on a non-confidential basis by any third party unless the ~~Market Participant Clearinghouse Member~~ or its Representatives has or have actual knowledge that such third party breached an obligation of confidentiality to the Company or any other Person by making such information available to the ~~Market Participant Clearinghouse Member~~ or its Representatives.

8. The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage may occur in the event any provision of this Agreement was not performed in accordance with the terms hereof and that the parties hereto shall be entitled to seek equitable relief in addition to any other remedy at law.

9. The obligations of the ~~Market Participant Clearinghouse Member~~ under this Agreement shall survive until the eighteen (18) month anniversary of the time at which the ~~Market Participant Clearinghouse Member no longer has the right to appoint a member of the Risk Committee ceases to be a member of the Clearinghouse.~~

10. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law rules or provisions (whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of New York. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding seeking to enforce any provision of, or based on any matter arising out of or in connection with, this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby shall be heard and determined in any state courts of the State of New York or the United States District Court located in the Southern District of New York, and each of the parties hereto hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts (and of the appropriate appellate courts therefrom) in any such claim, action, suit or proceeding and irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any such claim,

EXHIBIT 5A

action, suit or proceeding in any such court or that any such claim, action, suit or proceeding which is brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

EXHIBIT 5A

ICE Clear Credit LLC

By _____
Name:
Title:

**[MARKET PARTICIPANT CLEARINGHOUSE
MEMBER]**

By _____
Name:
Title:

EXHIBIT 5A

**Schedule 511: Form of Risk Advisory Working Group Management
Subcommittee Confidentiality Agreement**

EXHIBIT 5A

Acknowledgement of Confidentiality

The undersigned individual (the "**Member**") of the Risk Advisory Working Group Subcommittee ("Working Group Subcommittee") of ICE Clear Credit LLC:

1. Agrees that all Working Group Subcommittee discussions and all documents and other information distributed to the Working Group Subcommittee that are not otherwise publicly available (the "**Confidential Information**") are confidential and proprietary to ICE Clear Credit LLC and agrees (a) not to disclose Confidential Information to any person and (b) not to trade for his/her own account or for or on behalf of any other person's account, any securities, options on securities, commodities, futures or options on futures, or any other derivative or security to the extent such Confidential Information is material non-public information;
2. Agrees to notify ICE Clear Credit LLC as soon as practicable in the event that the undersigned is compelled, requested or required to disclose Confidential Information; provided, that in each such case, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the undersigned shall be permitted to make such disclosure.
3. Confidential Information shall not include:
 - a. Any information that is or has become generally available to the public other than as a result of a disclosure by the Member in breach of any of the provisions of this Acknowledgement, provided, that information disclosed by a person to a governmental authority or self-regulatory agency or organization in connection with the formation, ownership and operation of ICE Clear Credit LLC shall not be deemed "generally available to the public" as a result of such disclosure;
 - b. Any information that has been independently developed by the Member without violating any of the provisions of this Acknowledgement or any other similar contract to which the Member is bound;
 - c. Any information that was available to the Member on a non-confidential basis prior to disclosure; or
 - d. Any information made available to the Member on a non-confidential basis by any third party unless the member has actual knowledge that such third party breached an obligation of confidentiality to ICE Clear Credit LLC or any other person by making such information available to the Member.
4. The Member acknowledges that the obligations set forth in this Acknowledgement are in addition to any other obligation with respect to confidentiality to which the Member is bound.
5. This acknowledgement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law rules or provisions (whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdiction) that

EXHIBIT 5A

would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of New York. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding seeking to enforce any provision of, or based on any matter arising out of or in connection with, this acknowledgement or the transactions contemplated hereby shall be heard and determined in any state courts of the State of New York or the United States District Court located in the Southern District of New York, and each of the parties hereto hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts (and of the appropriate appellate courts therefrom) in any such claim, action, suit or proceeding and irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of any such claim, action, suit or proceeding in any such court or that any such claim, action, suit or proceeding which is brought in any such court has been brought in an inconvenient forum.

By: _____

Print Name: _____

Date: _____